
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

March 4, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision Craig Rood 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policy–Non-Discrimination & Anti-Harassment (Remains under review/development, no request for action) 

B. Emergency Operations Plan (For Action) Stevie Nosich, Emergency 

Management & Environmental Safety Coordinator  

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policy – Consensual Relationships (For Review)  Amber Fisk, Human Resources Director 

B. Strategic Plan (For Review) Irene Richardson 

C. Medical Staff Bylaws (For Review) Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff President 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Finance & Audit Committee         Marty Kelsey 

1. I.S. Report 

2. Bad Debt (For Action) 

3. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

B. Foundation Board Craig Rood 

C. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee  Barbara Sowada 

D. Joint Conference Committee                                        Barbara Sowada 

E. Building & Grounds Committee                       Marty Kelsey 

F. Compliance Committee Kandi Pendleton 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Quality Committee Kandi Pendleton 

I. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

IX. Board Education                   Barbara Sowada 

A. Vision and Talent by Kaufman Hall  

1/156



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

March 4, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

X. Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts 

XI. Good of the Order                   Barbara Sowada 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix))       Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

A. Request for Privileges (For Action) 

B. Legal Agreement (For Action) 

XIV. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/156



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/156



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

February 7, 2024 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session via 

Zoom on February 7, 2024, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Judge Nena James, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. 

Barbara Sowada.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; Mr. Taylor Jones, Sweetwater County Commissioner Liaison; and 

Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Dr. Sowada read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson announced Dr. Banu Symington was recently invited to join the editorial board of 

CA: A Cancer Journal for Clinicians, the flagship journal of the American Cancer Society, as an 

Associate Editor. Ms. Richardson said this is wonderful for Dr. Symington to receive this 

recognition. Ms. Richardson said at the recent Red Tie Gala, a gentleman approached Ms. 

Richardson and said he would not be here without the Hospital. He said he supports the Hospital, 

is very grateful to everyone, and was very complimentary to the physicians and staff.  

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. 

Motion carried.    

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the January 3, 2024, regular meeting as presented was made 

by Mr. Rood; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

4/156



 

 

Minutes of the February 7, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

There were no comments. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Employee Policy – Non-Discrimination & Anti-Harassment 

 

Dr. Sowada said we continue work on employee policies. Ms. Pendleton suggested calling a 

special HR Committee meeting in February to move forward anything that is ready for full Board 

review in March.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Joint Conference Committee Charter 

 

Dr. Sowada reported the last time the information was reviewed was 2017. She and Mr. Kelsey 

said the changes were minor. The motion to approve the updated Joint Conference Committee 

Charter as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

Emergency Operations Plan 

 

Ms. Stevie Nosich, Emergency Management and Environmental Safety Coordinator, reviewed the 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) information. She said there were slight changes due to Joint 

Commission updates. Dr. Sowada requested a minor change in capitalization and said the 

document will return to the March meeting agenda for a second review.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson thanked staff for embracing our person-centered care culture. She said the work 

started with our current strategic plan. Ms. Richardson said when The Joint Commission was here 

in December, during introductions, she took the opportunity to talk about our culture. They asked 

if we thought they would see and feel the culture when they were conducting the survey. At the 

exit meeting, they said they could feel our culture and recognized it as something they do not 

always see. Ms. Richardson said we want to make sure we take care of our patients and take care 

of the staff who take care of the patients and each other. She said we have an amazing group of 

trainers for our person-centered-care workshops. Ms. Richardson said we continue to meet with 

new physicians, locums physicians, and University of Utah emergency room physicians to review 

our culture and expectations. Ms. Richardson said our Patient and Family Advisory Council 

continues to meet monthly. She said it is an excellent group of community members, the meetings 

are well-attended, and the group is committed to helping the Hospital move healthcare forward in 

Sweetwater County. Ms. Richardson said we continue to look at the specifics around Critical 

Access Hospital status to make sure we have everything structured the way we want. We are 

working on our responses to the recent Joint Commission survey. We will need to be surveyed 

again following submitting our Critical Access Hospital application. Ms. Richardson said we have 

been working on the updated strategic plan. She apologized for not bringing it forward yet and 

said she has been working on it with her senior leaders to make sure we do our due diligence to 

5/156



 

 

Minutes of the February 7, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

create and present a valuable plan. The update will be on the March meeting agenda and will 

include goals and initiatives. Ms. Richardson said our responses to The Joint Commission 

following their December onsite survey are due February 12. She said we are one of only 20% of 

hospitals in the nation not receiving a repeat survey. Ms. Richardson thanked everyone involved 

in the work to achieve a good survey. A group toured our locations for master plan work and staff 

were very receptive and helpful. Ms. Richardson said we are watching for their final report. Ms. 

Richardson reported she had been doing regular radio spots and invited Trustees to join her. She 

said the American Hospital Association Rural Healthcare Conference will be held in February and 

she is happy Dr. Sowada and Mr. Rood are able to participate. Dr. Sowada has been invited to 

participate in a podcast and will address some of the challenges we have been facing in rural 

hospitals. Ms. Richardson said it is impressive Dr. Sowada was asked to do this and it speaks to 

her good work over the years and valuable board experience. Dr. Sowada noted the importance of 

hiring a good CEO and having a good, trusting relationship which she said we have done here. Ms. 

Richardson reported the Red Tie Gala was an amazing event and thanked the Foundation for a 

wonderful event and the support they give us. She said departments donated creative baskets and 

the live auction items were great. Ms. Richardson said she heard many positive comments and is 

so grateful to the community for their support. Ms. Richardson said she spoke at the Young at 

Heart Senior Center in January and has been invited back so she plans to return often. She is 

speaking at the Green River Chamber of Commerce luncheon in February. She said she looks for 

opportunities to talk about all the great things happening at the Hospital and give people the 

opportunity to ask questions. Ms. Richardson said we have been very busy at the Hospital and 

thanked staff for taking care of our patients and our community. Dr. Sowada said that, as always, 

everyone has been very busy doing very good work. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the meeting minutes are in the packet. She said the Board Bylaws need to be 

reviewed every three years and the last review was in May 2021. The Committee is going to 

form an Ad Hoc Committee to work on the Bylaws.  

 

Quality Committee 

 

Ms. Pendelton said Dr. Sowada chaired the meeting and asked her to cover anything specific. Dr. 

Sowada asked everyone to pay attention to the summary provided by the Quality Department. She 

said there are some outstanding performance improvement initiatives in the works. Dr. Sowada 

noted the full Quality Committee packet with all the details is in the board portal for Trustee 

reference.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Ms. Pendelton said the Committee did not meet and will conduct a special meeting in February. 

 

  

6/156



 

 

Minutes of the February 7, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditure Request: Mr. Kelsey said Ms. Richardson approached the Committee with a 

request to purchase an item in a timely manner and she utilized her delegated expenditure authority 

to purchase a DEXA scanner with the understanding she would request ratification from the Board 

at this meeting. The motion to approve the purchase of a DEXA scanner for $57,695.50 as 

presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Judge James. Motion carried. Ms. Richardson 

thanked everyone for their support of her using her emergency privileges and thanked Dr. Sowada 

and Mr. Kelsey for their quick responses. She said it is wonderful to get the equipment here for 

the care of our patients.  

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the potential bad debt of $1,342,402.42 as presented was made 

by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.   

 

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information: Dr. Sowada noted a record high revenue 

month. Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, agreed and provided a brief overview of financial 

highlights. Mr. Kelsey noted contract labor went down and he shared some comparison 

information from a review of statistics he made for December 2022 and December 2023. He 

explained what causes our margins and noted revenues were up almost 19% and expenditures were 

up only 4%.   

 

Foundation Board 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, provided a brief update of the Master Plan Project, 

Guardian Angel Program, Waldner House usage, ultrasound equipment grants, Donor Wall 

updates, and the success of the Red Tie Gala. Mr. Rood, Judge James, and Commissioner Jones 

said it was a great event.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee has not met. 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee has not met.  

 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Kelsey said his report is in the packet.  

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

  

7/156



 

 

Minutes of the February 7, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Cardinal Pharmacy Agreement 

 

Ms. Richardson reviewed the agreement. She said the relationship we have had with Cardinal has 

been very good. It has been a long standing relationship and she said we are grateful for the services 

they provide to us. They are wonderful to work with and are very knowledgeable. The motion to 

approve the agreement as presented was made by Mr. Rood; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion 

carried.  

 

BOARD EDUCATION 

 

Dr. Sowada said she thought the short videos were a nice overview.   

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts said the Medical Staff has been reviewing their bylaws. The plan is for changes to come 

to the full Board in March for review.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

There were no comments.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 3:00 p.m. was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. 

Rood. Motion carried. Dr. Sowada said there would be a 10-minute break. 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

The motion to leave executive session and return to regular session at 3:57 p.m. was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to grant clinical privileges and appointments to the Medical Staff as discussed in 

executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical 

Privileges and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from January 9, 2024 

 

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Rami Ibrahim, Radiology 

 

2. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Brandon Shelley, Podiatry  

 

8/156



 

 

Minutes of the February 7, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

3. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Sarah Lombardo, Tele-ICU 

 Dr. Sudha Jayaraman, Tele-ICU 

 Dr. Shaden Mohammad, Tele-Radiology 

 

4. Reappointment to Non-Physician Staff (2 years) 

 Leete, Starla Certified Nurse Midwife 

 

The motion to approve physician and staff contracts and authorize the CEO to execute the contracts 

as discussed in executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. Motion 

carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 4:01 p.m.  

      

 

    

  ___________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

9/156



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

February 28, 2024 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special workshop 

meeting via Zoom on February 28, 2024, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, 

presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees 

were present online during the meeting: Judge Nena James, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Craig Rood, 

and Dr. Barbara Sowada. Excused: Ms. Kandi Pendleton.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Taylor 

Jones, Sweetwater County Commission Liaison; and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

MISSION MOMENT 

 

Ms. Richardson said Dr. Fred Matti, Radiologist, shared a conversation with her he had with 

someone in our community. The person told him they had called the Hospital to talk about a 

concern and said we helped them and everyone was amazing. The person told Dr. Matti they work 

in the service industry and has heard many people say the Hospital is amazing and they trust the 

Hospital. Dr. Matti said we have been very busy and this person told him they believe it is because 

people are trusting the Hospital. Dr. Matti told Ms. Richardson this made him feel very good about 

all we are doing.  

 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE 

 

Mr. Kelsey announced a quorum of the Finance & Audit Committee. He welcomed Commissioner 

Jones to the meeting. The motion to approve the committee agenda was made by Ms. Richardson; 

second by Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer. Motion carried. The motion to approve the 

January 21, 2024, committee meeting minutes was made by Ms. Layne, Controller; second by Ms. 

Richardson. Motion carried. Mr. Kelsey said there was no need to take any action on any business 

items. In reference to the narrative, Mr. Kelsey said he has been on the Board almost seven years 

and he doesn’t remember a margin like this before and he said he thinks it is awesome. Ms. Love 

highlighted some information in the financial narrative. Ms. Richardson provided a Critical Access 

Hospital (CAH) update. She said we have been very busy and we are limited by the number of 

patients we can see due to staffing. We met with the Medical Staff and we are going to trial a 

separate 10-bed observation unit so we can see what that would look like. Observation beds are 

not counted in the 25-bed count required with CAH. Ms. Richardson said everyone agrees patients 

come first. If patients want to stay here and the physicians want them to stay here, we need to find 

a way to make that happen. We are able to keep more patients here due to the telemedicine options 

in place. It is becoming harder and harder to transfer patients because other facilities have staffing 

issues of their own. Ms. Love said CliftonLarsonAllen is onsite this week. They have been doing 

10/156



 

 

Minutes of the February 28, 2024 Board of Trustees Special Workshop Meeting 

Page 2 

some training sessions with the patient access teams. We will be able to start to track some things 

like eligibility and point of service collections better. We have some baseline information and can 

run some reports to track going forward. They also met with the patient finance team to continue 

their work on their policies and procedures. They are still doing the documentation training with 

the providers. We have received great feedback on that process. It is going very well. Dr. Sowada 

said we have much to celebrate with the highest revenue month ever.  

  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 2:17 p.m. was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. 

Rood. Motion carried. 

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

 

The motion to leave executive session and return to regular session at 3:54 p.m. was made by 

Judge James; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 3:55 p.m.  

 

 

 

       __________________________________________ 

       Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

 
 

Attest: 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

 

 

11/156



 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:3/4/2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items:  

The EOP Plan – The Emergency Management chapter standards from The Joint Commission 
have been reformatted. They have updated the standard numbers and EP’s, therefore the 
policy needed updated. While going through the policy, our Committee noticed that a few titles 
were not accurate, they have been updated as well.  

And on the hospital incident command structure there were some items that were not in the 
right place that have also been updated.  

The overall updates were standard numbers, title corrections, and correct location of specific 
information. 

 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments:  
 
Recommendation to approve. 

 

Board Committee Action: 

N/A 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☐ For Review Only 

 ☒ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: N/A 

 ☐ In House Comments: 

 ☐ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
 
Recommendation for approval.  

12/156



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 13755626 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

Emergency 
Operations 

Reg. 
Standards 

TJC EM 
12.01.01, TJC 
EM.09.01.01,
TJC 
EM.10.01.01 
+ 12 more 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 
Conforming to TJC EM.09.01.01,  (MHSC) Emergency Operations Plan provides an organized process to 
initiate, manage, and recover from a variety of emergencies or incidents, both external and internal, which 
could confront the Hospital and the surrounding community based upon the annual Hazard Vulnerability 
Assessment (HVA). 

The Emergency Operations Plan describes a comprehensive "all hazards" continuity of operation plans 
(COOP) with command structure that uses the Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) for coordinating 
six (6) critical areas: communications, resources and assets, safety and security, staffing, utilities, and 
clinical activities. The overall response procedures include emergencies that can temporarily affect demand 
for services, along with emergencies that can occur concurrently or sequentially that can adversely impact 
patient safety and the ability to provide care, treatment, and services for an extended length of time. 

MHSC frequently reviews and updates emergency plans to establish the necessary policies and procedures 
to achieve preparedness for, response to and recovery from an incident. These plans and procedures are 
exercised and reviewed to determine and measure functional capability. 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLANS (links) 
In Alphabetic order: 

• Link to 1135 Waiver Request Procedure https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
9548773/latest/ 

• Link to Active Shooter Response http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674995/
latest/ 

• Link to Boiler Failure Protocol http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674718/latest/ 

• Link to Bomb Threat Protocol http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674829/latest/ 

• Link to Call-Tree Phone List http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/4000707/latest/ 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 28

13/156



DRAFT

• Link to Code Pink: Infant/Child Abduction Response http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/
policy/3972423/latest/ 

• Link to Code Red: Fire Response http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674716/
latest/ 

• Link to Continuing of Operation Plan (COOP)  https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
12054147/latest/ 

• Link to Decontamination Response http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3615387/
latest/ 

• Link to Delegation of Authority & Succession Protocol 
https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/9357259/latest/ 

• Link to Evacuation Protocol http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674819/latest/ 

• Link to Hazardous Spill and Exposure Response   http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/
policy/3674797/latest/ 

• Link to Information Technology Disaster Recovery Response
hhttps://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/10761636/latest 

• Link to Loss of Air Handling Units http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674796/
latest/ 

• Link to Loss of Elevators http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674787/latest/ 

• Link to Loss of Medical Gas or Vacuum http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
3674740/latest/ 

• Link to Mass Casualty Response http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674815/
latest/ 

• Link to Medical Staff Policy for Granting Privileges in Disasters 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3844658/latest/ 

• Link to Natural Disaster Response http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674812/
latest/ 

• Link to Pandemic Response https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/7761435/latest/ 

• Link to Patient Upsurge: Internal Response http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
3674824/latest/ 

• Link to Physical Altercation Response http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
3674813/latest/ 

• Link to Plumbing Failure http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674792/latest/ 

• Link to Power Failure http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674737/latest/ 

• Link to Severe Weather Response http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674808/
latest/ 

• Link to Tornado Watch And/Or Warning Response Plan 
http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/5035899/latest/ 

• Link to Water Failure http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/3674802/latest/ 

• Link to Radioactive Spill https://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/12570163/latest 

Link to Hospital Incident Command System Forms (see also attached) 

https://emsa.ca.gov/hospital-incident-command-system-forms-2014/ 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 28

14/156



DRAFT

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN (EOP) 
I. HOSPITAL LEADERSHIP RESPONSIBILITIES - TJC 

EM.10.01.01 
A. Leadership 

The Hospital's leaders, including the medical staff, are involved in the planning activities 
of the Emergency Operations Plan. The medical staff, Senior Leadership, and department 
leaders are represented in the Emergency Management Committee. The final copy of the 
EOP is approved by the Emergency Management Committee, Senior Leadership, the 
Medical Executive Committee (MEC), and MHSC's Board of Trustees. 

B. Emergency Program Managers 

Per senior leadership delegation the Emergency management Coordinator (EM 
Coordinator) and the Emergency Department Director (ED Director) or designee work 
together as the Emergency Program (EP) Managers. The EP Managers provide overall 
management of the hospital's preparedness efforts, including developing needed 
procedures, coordinating production or revision of the Emergency Operations Plan (EOP), 
planning and executing training and exercises, and writing After Action Reports (AAR). 
The EP Managers or their designee represent the Hospital at various preparedness 
meetings at the local, regional, and state levels. The desired background for an 
Emergency Program Manager includes formal and informal training, education, and/or 
experience in emergency management, National Incident Management System (NIMS), 
Hospital Incident Command, hospital operations and familiarity with local, regional, and 
state healthcare-system design and emergency response procedures. 

C. The Emergency Management Committee 

The Hospital's EM Committee is a multidisciplinary group of Hospital representatives 
involved in planning for potential disasters based upon the HVA. Local agencies such as 
police, fire/emergency medical services, city and county emergency management and 
public health, through committee deliberations, help clarify the Hospital's roles and 
responsibilities to support community response to incidents. These multi-agency 
collaboration encourage familiarity and networking between community partners as well 
as promote much needed priority setting, information-sharing, and joint decision-making 
during a true incident. 

The Hospital's EM Committee meets regularly and consists of clinical and non-clinical 
representatives from key Hospital departments and functioning units of the facility. The 
EM Coordinator is the EM Committee chairperson. The chairperson will set each 
meeting's agenda and facilitate the Committee's work to achieve an annually established 
set of objectives. Minutes of each meeting will be published and disseminated to 
Committee members. 

To ensure overall readiness and support, the chairperson will report to the Performance 
Improvement Patient Safety (PIPS) Committee twice per year and present the evaluation/
review of the scope and objectives of the Emergency Operations Plan to the Quality 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 28

15/156



DRAFT

Committee of the Board biennially. 

II. PLANNING ACTIVITIES – TJC EM.11.01.01 
A. HAZARD VULNERABILITY ANALYSIS 

MHSC identifies potential emergencies that could affect demand for the Hospital's 
services or its ability to provide those services, the likelihood of those incidents 
occurring, and the consequences of those incidents. 

1. The assessment is the Hazard Vulnerability Analysis (HVA) attached to this 
Plan, it is designed to assist the EM Committee in gaining a realistic 
understanding of the vulnerabilities and to help focus the resources and 
planning efforts. 

2. The Hospital prioritizes hazards identified on annual review of the HVA. 

3. The community and region's HVA assessments are also an aid in the 
assessment by the Hospital. 

4. A list of priority concerns are developed from the HVA and are evaluated 
annually to determine what exercises are to be conducted, along with any 
additional planning. 

B. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

MHSC has established a relationship with community partners. Potential emergencies 
are identified in the MHSC Hazard Vulnerability Analysis and prioritized, in conjunction 
with HVA's from community partners. The HVA aids in establishing the needs and 
vulnerabilities of the Hospital.  The Hospital communicates its needs and vulnerabilities 
to community emergency response agencies and identifies the community’s capability to 
meet its needs.  This communication and identification occur at the time of the hospital's 
review of its Emergency Operations Plan, which occurs at least every two years and 
whenever its needs or vulnerabilities change. 

During a disaster, the Hospital's role within the community is to care for sick and/or 
wounded individuals who may present for treatment. The facility and community are 
involved through: 

• Local emergency management meetings 

• State emergency management meetings 

C. MITIGATION, PREPAREDNESS, RESPONSE AND RECOVERY 

The Emergency Program Managers and the EM Committee develop appropriate specific 
emergency response plans based on priorities established as part of the Hazard 
Vulnerability Analysis. Each Emergency Response Plan addresses the four (4) phases of 
emergency management activities: 

Mitigation - Activities designed to reduce the risk of and potential damage due to an 
emergency (i. e., the installation of stand-by or redundant equipment, training). 

Preparedness - Activities that organize and mobilize essential resources such as plan-

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 28

16/156



DRAFT

writing, employee education, preparation with outside agencies, acquiring and 
maintaining critical supplies. 

Response - Activities the Hospital undertakes to respond to disruptive incidents. The 
actions are designed with strategies and actions to be activated during the emergency (i. 
e., control, warnings, and evacuations). 

Recovery - Activities the Hospital undertakes to return the facility to complete business 
operations. Short-term actions assess damage and return vital life-support operations to 
minimum safe operating standards. Long-term focus is on returning all Hospital 
operations back to normal or an improved state of affairs. 

D. Hospital Command Center (HCC) and Delegation of Authority 

1. The HCC will be set up immediately in the Physician Lounge. If the Physician 
Lounge is not available, the Incident Commander (IC) will identify an alternate 
site. The alternate HCC location will be announced overhead by the PBX 
Operator. The Incident Commander will initiate the Hospital Incident Command 
System (HICS). 

2. Order of succession: Due to rural nature and limited resources, the 
organization establishes and maintains orders of succession for key positions 
in the event Leadership is incapable of performing authorized duties. (See 
MHSC policy"Delegation of Authority and Secession Protocol", and "COOP"). 
Designation as a "successor" enables the selected individual to serve in the 
same position as the principal in the event of principals death, incapacity, or 
resignation. Order of succession is determined with each incident as selection 
of individuals for key positions may vary based on type of incident.  Please see 
attached templates. 

3. Designation/delegation of authority: Due to rural nature and limited resources, 
designation/delegation of authority is determined with each incident as 
designation/delegation of authority may vary based on type of incident. 
Designation/delegation of authority specify the actions individuals are 
authorized to implement.  The organization establishes designation/delegation 
of authority to provide successors the legal authority to act on behalf of the 
organization and to carry out specified duties.  Designation/delegation of 
authority will take effect when normal channels of direction are disrupted and 
will terminate when these channels are reestablished. Please see attached 
templates. 

4. Per TJC EM.15.01.01, EM Committee and all leaders to fill the HCC positions 
will have to complete these HICS trainings and are met annually through 
MHSC's on line education program and initial orientation. 

5. Once the type of the emergency is determined, the appropriate Emergency 
Response Plan will be initiated. (See section VII "Communication 
Management" for emergency response plans/codes) 

E. Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) 

The Hospital has implemented the Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) developed 
by the Emergency Medical Services Authority (EMSA) of California as a revision from the 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 28

17/156



DRAFT

previous Hospital Emergency Incident Command System (HEICS). 

HICS is an incident management system based on the Incident Command System (ICS) 
that assists hospitals to improve their emergency management planning, response, and 
recovery capabilities for unplanned and planned incidents. HICS is consistent with ICS 
and the National Incident Management System (NIMS) principles. The new HICS has 
been restructured to be consistent with ICS and NIMS principles and will provide greater 
flexibility/adaptability for the hospital setting. 

• The Command staff will report to the Hospital Command Center. Command 
Staff may include a Public Information Officer, a Safety Officer, a Liaison 
Officer, one or more Medical Specialist and administrative support to assist 
with the phones and documentation. 

• The Incident Commander (IC) will organize and direct the HCC and give overall 
direction for hospital operations and if needed, authorize evacuation. 

• The IC in concert with the Command Staff, have the delegated authority to 
implement the appropriate emergency operations plans. 

• The Safety Officer, if assigned, assists the IC to ensure that the Emergency 
Operations Plan is implemented and identify any hazards or unsafe conditions. 

• The Public Information Officer (PIO), if assigned, provides information to the 
news media as directed or approved by the IC. 

• The Liaison Officer if assigned,  coordinates with community partners and 
assist the IC as directed. 

• Administrative support will provide phone support and documentation support 
for the IC, along with receiving various information/tracking lists and 
messages. 

• The Section Chiefs for Operations, Planning, Finance, and Logistics, if assigned 
establish their functions as directed by the Incident Commander. They then 
report to their designated meeting place to receive further instructions. 

• The IC or Liaison Officer, if assigned, initiates communication with local 
emergency response groups, as needed. 

• The proper HICS identification apparel will be issued to the Command Center 
Staff and Section Chiefs and other designated personnel as required by the 
incident and HICS structure established. 

• The IC directs Security Department personnel to the appropriate location, as 
necessary, in preparation for securing the facility (lock-down). 
Command Staff 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 6 of 28

18/156



DRAFT
F.   Operations Section 

• The Operations Section conducts the tactical operations (e.g., patient care, 
clean up) to carry out the plan using defined objectives and directing all needed 
resources. Many incidents that are likely to occur involve injured or ill patients. 
The Operations Section Chief will be responsible for managing the tactical 
objectives outlined by the Incident Commander. This section is typically the 
largest in terms of resources to marshal and coordinate. To maintain a 
manageable span of control and streamline the organizational management, 
Branches, Divisions, and Units are implemented as needed. The degree to 
which command positions are activated depends on the situational needs and 
the availability of qualified command officers. 

• Operations Staff 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 7 of 28

19/156



DRAFT
G. Planning Section 

• The Planning Section collects and evaluates information for decision support, 
maintains resource status information, prepares documents, and maintains 
documentation for incident reports. It will also be responsible for preparing 
status reports, displaying various types of information, and developing the 
Incident Action Plan (IAP). The effectiveness of the Planning Section has a 
direct impact on the availability of information needed for the critical, strategic 
decision-making done by the Incident Commander and the other General Staff 
positions. 

• Planning Section 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 8 of 28

20/156



DRAFT
H. Logistics Section 

• The Logistics Section provides support, resources, and other essential services 
to meet the operational objectives set by Incident Commander. For the 
Hospital to respond effectively to the demands associated with a disaster, the 
Logistics Section will coordinate support requirements. These responsibilities 
include acquiring resources from internal and external sources using standard 
and emergency acquisition procedures and requests to the local EOC 
(Emergency Operation Center). When requesting resources from outside 
sources, it will be important that the hospital specify exactly what is needed 
and not try to identify how that need can be met: that will be done at the local 
EOC. In addition, it is important for the hospital to know how the requests are 
to be made (electronically, fax, phone): HICS form #254 - EOP Manual Flash 
drive 

• Logistics Section 

I. Finance Section 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 9 of 28

21/156



DRAFT

• The Finance/Administration Section monitors costs related to the incident 
while providing accounting, procurement, time recording, and cost analyses. 
The costs associated with the response must be accounted for from the 
outset of the incident. These costs can come from multiple sources such as 
overtime; loss of revenue-generating activities; and repair, replacement, and/or 
rebuild expenses. Daily financial reporting requirements are likely to be 
modified and, in select situations, new requirements outlined by state and 
federal officials. 

• Preplanning efforts should identify what state and federal financial aid 
documents must be completed for receiving reimbursement. In addition to 
patient costs being tracked, vendor expenses, mutual aid financial 
remuneration, and personnel claims must also be accounted for and 
processed. The Finance/Administration Section coordinates personnel time 
(Time Unit), orders items and initiates contracts (Procurement Unit), arranges 
personnel-related payments and Worker's Compensation (Compensation/
Claims Unit), and tracks response and recovery costs and payment of invoices 
(Cost Unit). 

• Finance Section 

III. INVENTORY & MONITORING OF ASSETS & 
RESOURCES 

IV. MHSC has identified and documented the resources and assets that are available on-site and/or 
elsewhere prior to an incident. The Inventory and Sustainability Tool includes the assets and 
resources such as: 

• Personal protective equipment (PPE) 

• Water 

• Fuel 

• Medical supplies 

• Surgical supplies 

• Medications 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 10 of 28

22/156



DRAFT

V. EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN – TJC 
EM.12.01.01 

A. Response 

Each emergency response plan has procedures to direct the immediate and long term 
response to the emergency. The "all hazards"  Continuity of Operation Plan (COOP) 
command structure is used to manage the response to the incident and assure adequate 
staffing for patient care and safety. A response to an emergency can include any of the 
following: maintaining or expanding services, conserving resources, curtailing services, 
supplementing resources from outside the local community, closing the hospital to new 
patients, staged evacuation, and total evacuation. 

B. Continuity of Operation Plan (COOP) is included with the essential functions/service, 
orders of succession, designation/delegation of authority, continuity, and 
communications. 
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County has one or more emergency management 
response plans based on the emergency plan, risk assessment, and communication 
plan. Procedures guiding implementation are defined in this 
emergency management plan, continuity of operations plan, and other preparedness and 
response protocols. Response plans, procedures and documents are reviewed by the EM 
Committee and updated at least every two years. The format of these documents is at 
the discretion of the hospital. 

C. Staff Response 

1. All on-duty Staff will report to their department, reporting to their supervisor or 
Director and STAND-BY for further instructions (i.e., being ready, willing and 
able to perform assigned duties). Unit leaders will complete a Disaster 
Readiness Response form (attached) reporting current staffing levels and unit 
patient care activity to HCC.  Staff will continue their assigned patient care 
activities until directed otherwise by the HCC. 

2. Departments with excess personnel will advise HCC of the number of available 
staff to support the Labor Pool. Labor pool personnel will stay at their home 
department until called upon by HCC. 

3. Labor pool personnel will be assigned by the HCC as needed to support the 
hospital's incident response. 

4. Patients and Staff away from their assigned treatment area will return to the 
appropriate area as soon as practical or receive instructions to secure the 
patient in an ancillary location if necessary. 

5. Staff unable to return to their assigned area will notify their department leader 
of the location of the patient and Staff member. Department leaders will report 
this to the HCC for patient tracking. 

6. All Staff requesting to go off duty must obtain the approval from HCC through 
their department leaders. The department leaders may not give this approval 
without prior clearance from the Incident Commander. Staff must not leave 
their workstations until relief has arrived or until dismissed by the department 
leaders. 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 11 of 28

23/156



DRAFT

D. Departmental Response 

Each department leader, for both clinical and non-clinical operations, will assess the 
status of their Staff's ability to maintain normal operations. 

1. Each department leader, or designee, will identify available resources, such as 
beds, personnel, and equipment, which could be allocated to the emergency 
response. 

2. The department leader will complete the Disaster Readiness Report and relay 
the information to the HCC, on status of the department. 

3. When the departments receive the notification of the specific emergency, the 
department leaders will initiate the appropriate departmental response plan for 
the emergency. 

4. The department leaders will report any problems or concerns to the 
appropriate Section Leader or the HCC. 

5. No department should reduce its hours of operation without prior approval 
from the HCC. 

E. SUSTAINABILITY 

The importance of sustainability on supplies is crucial to determine if services can still 
be rendered during an emergency incident. The Hospital plans for sustainability without 
the support of the community for the required 96 hours. This planning is a coordinated 
effort by the Emergency Management Committee and all Hospital departments by 
reviewing the six critical areas before an incident has occurred. Where supplies and 
alternative means are required to sustain 96 hours of operation, alternative resources 
and assets, must be identified by the Incident Commander. The Inventory and 
Sustainability Tool (see attached) has identified those resources and assets and the 
sustainability indicated in hours. 

F. RECOVERY PROCEDURES - TJC EM.14.01.01 

Recovery after an incident response defines the activities the Hospital will take to restore 
the systems that are critical to resuming normal care, treatment and services. Short-term 
recovery actions assess damage and return vital life-support operations to minimum 
safe operating standards. Long-term recovery focuses on returning all hospital 
operations back to normal or an improved state. MHSC will follow the following recovery 
protocol: 

1. When deemed appropriate, the Incident Commander will initiate the recovery 
phase by announcing an "All Clear". 

2. The Incident Commander will notify the PBX Operator to alert the staff of the 
end of the incident by announcing "All Clear" by normal code announcement 
methods. 

3. Labor Pool personnel will be released by the HCC Command Staff or a Section 
Chief. 

4. The Incident Commander notifies community Emergency Management 
Services of the "All Clear" action. 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 12 of 28

24/156



DRAFT

Note: Upon announcement of the "All Clear", all information concerning the 
emergency will be recorded and properly filed for later reference using the 
noted HICS forms (EOP Manual Flash drive). 

5. Section Leaders and HCC staff will contact Unit leaders to receive information 
and critiques concerning the response to the emergency. 

6. Form #252, #256: All expenses and overtime information will be provided to 
the Finance Section for documentation. Evidence of the damage or 
abnormalities caused by the emergency, or response to the emergency, should 
be documented through photographs or descriptive writings. 

7. The EM Coordinator and/or Security Personnel will collect and inspect all 
communication equipment, data processing systems, and other equipment 
used during the emergency. Equipment will be evaluated for appropriate use in 
the next emergency and consumable supplies documented for restocking.- The 
IC or designee will collect all HICS identification apparel and ensure that it is 
repackaged. EM Coordinator will be notified if materials need to be replaced 
for the next emergency. The IC or designee will ensure that the physical 
surrounding of the HCC is cleaned and furniture repositioned for normal 
operations. All documents used for the incident will be gathered and 
replacement copies of forms and documentation sheets will be replenished. 

8. The Hospital Command Center staff and appropriate designees will conduct 
the evaluation of the emergency and the response. The EM Coordinator will 
take notes, collect HICS forms and write the after action report (AAR). All 
reports shared and reviewed by the EM Committee and then are stored in the 
EM Coordinator office. 

9. The Public Information Officer will communicate to the local media relevant 
information concerning the "All Clear" as directed and approved by the IC. 

10. Facilities Management will ensure all utilities are back to normal operation. In 
the event there is a need to contact outside agencies to assist with this 
process, Logistics will contact the appropriate vendors or contractors to assist 
with the recovery process. 

11. The HVA will help us in identifying the critical systems, such as all utilities, 
communication and IT information, needed to return to full operation. 
Contractor and vendors will be contacted to assist our recovery process if 
needed. 

12. COMMUNICATION WITH FAMILY MEMBERS is part of the recovery process, 
this is addressed under communications. 

G. PLAN INITIATION AND TERMINATION 

To facilitate the orderly initiation of the response to an incident, the following steps of the 
Emergency Operations Plan will be initiated: 

1. Creditable information received by MHSC Emergency Department or to other 
MHSC leaders concerning an external incident facing the community or if an 
internal incident adversely affecting the function of the Hospital, the 
information will be passed directly to Administration or the Administrator on 
Call. 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 13 of 28

25/156



DRAFT

2. When notified of a potential disaster, the Administration/ Administrator on Call, 
House Supervisor, Emergency Department (ED) Physician, ED Director and/or 
ED Nursing staff will: 

a. Evaluate the issues such as location of incident (internal, external), 
the distance from the Hospital, the scope of the incident (single 
individual, mass casualty), and weather conditions (seasonal and 
current). 

b. Based upon the severity of the incident, the decision will be made 
whether or not to implement HICS. 

c. Plan the care of casualty and non-casualty patients arriving in the 
Emergency Department during the incident. 

d. Once it has been determined to activate HICS, the individual who 
takes the role of Incident Commander will notify the hospital staff 
and executives as soon as possible. 

3. Note: During work hours it is unknown which senior leader might be available. 
It may be the determination of administration to contact the EM Coordinator or 
other staff well trained in HICS methodology to assume the position of Incident 
Commander. 

VI. INCIDENT PHASES 
A. Phase I 

When the hospital is notified by EMS and/or other sources of an incident that has 
occurred that may involve multiple casualties or a small incident with no casualties has 
occurred within the facility: 

1. A Phase I incident is a situation that can most likely be managed with the staff 
already on duty. 

2. Staff should remain on their assigned unit and review their department specific 
procedures as applicable, to be prepared to respond to the next Phase if the 
incident requires an upgrade. 

3. The Department Supervisor or Charge Nurse will have a bed count and 
expected discharges ready to report to HCC. 

4. The Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) will be initiated. Potentially, 
only selected or affected departments may be notified depending upon 
expected or actual severity of the incident. 

B. Phase II 

When the hospital will be receiving a large number of patients or a major incident occurs 
within the facility and additional support staff will be required: 

1. Situation requires additional staff to be called into the hospital – activate 
Emergency Hospital Alert System as needed. 

2. All on duty staff will remain at their assigned units and will follow the 
department specific procedures. 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 14 of 28

26/156



DRAFT

3. The HCC will be initiated to coordinate incident operations. 

C. Phase III 

When the facility will be receiving large numbers of patients that is likely to overwhelm 
normal and emergency patient care services and/or significant issues have occurred 
within the facility that has or will disrupt continued operation and results in the need for 
extensive internal and/or external support: 

1. The HCC will be initiated to coordinate emergency operations. 

2. This major incident will require mobilization of most aspects of the HICS as 
detailed in the EOP, including initiation of  the Hospital Emergency Alert System 
for staff relief over an extended period of time. 

VII. ALTERNATE CARE SITES -TJC EM.13.01.01 
A. MHSC is prepared for the possibility that the buildings or spaces in which patient care is 

normally provided will be rendered unusable. In this type of incident, a pre-designated 
alternate care site may be activated. Other facilities such as hospitals, community 
location, etc. have been assessed and identified as alternate site locations. The 
Memorandum of Understanding with alternative care sites are available from In House 
Counsel. 

1. Holiday Inn - 307-382-9200 

2. Aspen Mountain Medical Center 307-352-8900 

3. Homewood Suites - 307-382-0764 

B. MHSC's decision to use an ACS in an emergency response will be decided by the Incident 
Commander. Any equipment and supplies that may be needed at the ACS will be 
provided by the Hospital, and will be transported by designees assigned through Hospital 
Incident Command team. 

C. The HCC will determine collectively if a request for an 1135 waiver needs to be 
completed.  IC will delegate this task to the appropriate individual. 

VIII. COMMUNICATION MANAGEMENT – TJC 
EM.12.02.01 

A. INTERNAL & STAFF NOTIFICATION LEVELS 

1. The Incident Commander will notify the PBX Operator to alert the Staff of the 
incident by announcing the applicable Code via the overhead paging system. 

2. During an emergency all staff may announce overhead the following 
emergencies by dialing 700: 

• Hostage Situation 

• Active Shooter 

• Physical Altercation 

Note: Any inappropriate use of the overhead paging will be subject 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 15 of 28

27/156



DRAFT

to the corrective action process. 

3. The Staff may also be notified through alternate means and methods such as 
Intranet messages and personal communication devices (e. g., email, text 
messaging, pagers, walkie-talkies, satellite phone and cellular telephones) via 
the Mass Notification Messaging System, a.k.a. RAVE. 

4. In case of RAVE/Mass Notification system failure (i.e.Internet down) public 
radio announcements will be made and we will begin a manual phone call 
process: 

a. Use the Call-Tree Phone lists kept on the Hospital's shared 
drive: http://T:\Administration_Public\Call-Tree Phone Lists  Hard 
copies of the Call-Tree are updated and kept in the EOP Binders in 
the Administration and Security Offices. 

b. Designate "Callers" within each department and divide the list to 
expedite notification. 

c. Begin a Disaster Response Report (DRR), to list each person 
contacted. 

d. Begin calling: notify staff of the type of Emergency Code. 

e. If contact cannot be made, leave a detailed message (if possible), 
and inform staff to call Hospital Command Center (HCC) at 
352-8579 if/when available. 

f. When the end of the call list is reached, deliver DRR to department 
leader or designee. 

g. department leader or designee will complete the DRR and deliver to 
HCC via a runner. 

5. Call-Tree Phone lists are maintained by Human Resources. 

a. Each Director is responsible for notifying Human Resources of staff 
phone number changes. 

b. Each Department should print and keep a current hard copy of their 
phone list readily available within their department. 

Note:  Hard copy sets of the Call-Tree Phone list in the EOP Binders 
are kept in Administration, the Security offices and the Mobile 
Command Cabinet. Human resources updates the Call-Tree phone 
list every three months. 

6. Communications systems may include the following: 

• Internal telephone system: Internal communications will be limited to 
disaster-related issues once HICS has been initiated. THE 
OPERATOR SHOULD NOT BE CALLED FOR INFORMATION. 

• Radios: Communications Unit Leader will determine location and 
availability of radios and report to the Logistics Chief so distribution 
of radios can be determined. 

• RAVE, MHSC's emergency alert system, can send out text email and 
voice text to staff. In addition the public address system, inter-

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 16 of 28

28/156



DRAFT

departmental radios, fax, cellular telephones, and runners can be 
utilized. 

• Cell phones: for Text messaging and/or in the event of Internet 
failure/internal phones down. 

• The hospital has three (3) non-internet, direct dial hard line phones. 
They are located in three (3) locations: the Administration Office, the 
Physician Lounge and in the Emergency Department in the event the 
Internet fails. These phones are easily identified by their red 
housings. 

B. EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLANS-CODES 

1. INCIDENT OVERHEAD 
ANNOUNCEMENT 

Emergency 
# 

Hostage Incident Hostage Situation 700 - all 
staff    

Use of a Weapon Active Shooter 700 - all 
staff 

Disturbance or Altercation Physical Altercation 700 - all 
staff 

External Incident/Mass Casualty Mass Casualty 300 

Radiation/Biological/Chemical/
Incident 

HERT 300 

Bomb Threat Bomb Threat 300 

Fire CODE Red 300 

Infant/Pediatric Abduction CODE Pink 300 

Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest Code Blue 300 

Deterioration in Patient health Rapid Response 300 

Tornado Warning Tornado Warning 300 

Tornado Watch Tornado Watch 300 

C. NOTIFICATION & COMMUNICATION WITH EXTERNAL AUTHORITIES 

All appropriate external authorities will be notified to facilitate effective response, 
continuing operations, and recovery from an emergency that disrupts the normal patient 
care and/or business operations of the organization. When an emergency plan is 
initiated, the appropriate external authorities and community resources will be notified by 
telephone, cell phone, radio, or pager, whichever is functioning and available during an 
incident. 

D. COMMUNICATION WITH FAMILY 

In the event of a mass casualty incident, a temporary Family Support Center (FSC) may 
be established at the direction of the Incident Commander to facilitate in the relay of 
crucial information to family members regarding the status of patients and provide 
incident briefings as directed by the IC. Only immediate family members of victims/

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 17 of 28

29/156



DRAFT

patients will be allowed access to the Hospital. All family members will be directed to 
either the classrooms or cafeteria in the basement to the chosen site for the FSC. In a 
situation where a patient's emergency contact is not present with the patient, the 
emergency contact will be advised of the location of the patient if the patient is moved or 
evacuated 

E. COMMUNICATION WITH MEDIA 

The Public Information Officer (PIO) if assigned, has the responsibility for media and 
public information as it pertains to an incident that involves the Hospital and as directed 
by the Incident Commander. The PIO has established working relationships with local 
media, the local emergency management office, and public health prior to an incident. 
The PIO regularly attends meetings with the external agencies who in the event of a 
community-wide incident will establish a Joint Information Center (JIC). The information 
provided to the community will come from the JIC as a unified message to the residents 
of the area. If the Hospital is solely involved during an incident, the PIO in the Hospital 
Command Center will communicate with the community or local media as directed by 
the IC. 

F. COMMUNICATION WITH PURVEYORS 

MHSC has developed a list of purveyors, including vendors, contractors, and consultants 
that can provide specific services before, during, and after an incident. The list will be 
kept in the HCC and maintained by the EM Coordinator and updated as needed. 
Memorandum of Understandings (MOUs) have been developed to help facilitate services 
during the time of a community-wide incident. 

G. COMMUNICATION WITH OTHER HEALTHCARE ORGANIZATIONS 

1. The Healthcare organizations that are located within the geographical area to 
the facility have a working relationship with MHSC. These hospitals are 
members, as is MHSC,  of the Western Wyoming Healthcare Coalition: 

• St. John's Medical Center, Jackson, WY 

• Star Valley Medical Center, Afton, WY 

• South Lincoln Medical Center, Kemmerer, WY 

• Evanston Regional Hospital, Evanston, WY 

• Aspen Mountain Medical Center, Rock Springs, WY 

2. The key information to share with the other Healthcare organizations: 

• Names & roles of Hospital Incident Command team 

• Resources & assets to be potentially shared 

• Process for the dissemination of patient & deceased individual 
names for tracking purposes 

• Communication with third parties 

3. The patient information that may be shared with the other healthcare 
organizations, local or state health departments, or other law enforcement 
authorities on the whereabouts of patients during an incident may include 
patient's name and location. The information shared about the patients will be 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 18 of 28

30/156



DRAFT

in accordance with applicable HIPAA laws and regulations. 

H. COMMUNICATION WITH ALTERNATE CARE SITE 

The Hospital Command Center (HCC) will maintain communications with the Alternate 
Care Site (ACS). Once the ACS has been established, an Alternate Care Command Center 
(ACCC) will be initiated using the HICS format. The site will initiate contact with the HCC 
via the Hospital Liaison Officer through the ACS Liaison Officer to ensure that continuous 
communication, leadership and documentation will occur. The available communication 
will be the following: phones, fax, and radios. 

I. BACKUP COMMUNICATIONS 

MHSC will maintain a current listing of backup communication systems or devices. The 
communication devices or systems will be tested on a regular basis and be included in 
exercises. 

A listing of all communication of primary or secondary communication systems or 
devices is listed below: 

• Email will be available if the infrastructure is working. 

• Inter-departmental radios or inter-hospital radio networks may be used as 
backup communication. Training must be achieved along with an instruction 
card attached for those that do not use the equipment often. 

• Fax machines may be used as backup as long as some are on the emergency 
power and land line telephone lines are functional. 

• Ham radios may be used either with internal or external operators. 

• Cellular telephones have proven to shut down quickly during a natural or large-
scale disaster and may not be reliable. 

• The Hospital has satellite telephones for back up communications. 

• Runners will be used as a last resort when all other communications fail. 

Mass Notification authority is granted to the Director of Security and appointed 
designees, PBX operators, and house supervisors. 

IX. RESOURCE AND ASSET MANAGEMENT - TJC EM 
12.02.09 

A. OBTAINING & REPLENISHING MEDICAL, NON-MEDICAL & MEDICATION SUPPLIES 

The amounts, locations, processes for obtaining and replenishing of medical and non-
medical pharmaceutical supplies, including personal protective equipment, has been 
established. The process will need to go from mitigation to recovery stages. Medical 
supplies include anything used in the care of patients. Non-medical supplies include 
food, linen, water, fuel, and transportation vehicles. (see attached 96-hour sustainability 
grid). 

The amounts and locations of current supplies will be evaluated annually to determine 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 19 of 28

31/156



DRAFT

how many hours the facility can sustain before replenishing. This will give the facility a 
par level on supplies and aid in the projection of sustainability before terminating 
services or evacuating if during an incident supplies are unable to get to the facility. The 
inventory of resources and assets that were discussed earlier in the Planning Activities 
Section is the starting point of par levels. 

Memorandums of Understanding for each applicable emergency operations plans are 
available from the In House Counsel once the par level has decreased. 

B. SHARING OF RESOURCES 

The process of sharing resources with other healthcare organizations outside of the 
community during a regional incident will be coordinated through the County Emergency 
Operations Center (EOC). The Western Wyoming Healthcare Coalition identifies five (5) 
Medical Facilities in our region that could provide staffing support, supplies and other 
essential resources if needed in a disaster. The local community EOC will be contacted 
and support requested, with essential supplies, as needed and will be responsible for 
delivery of the needed resources. 

C. MONITORING RESOURCES AND ASSETS 

During the emergency, a process has been put into place under the Logistics Chief that 
will monitor the overall quantities of assets and resources. This information will be 
communicated through HICS within the facility and to those within the community who 
have a need to know. 

X. SECURITY AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT –  TJC 
EM.12.02.07 

A. SECURITY WITH COMMUNITY 

Upon activation the Emergency Operations Plan, all available Security personnel will be 
called in to report to the Security Branch Director and standby for further direction from 
the HCC. Security issues will be handled according to Security Department policies and 
procedures. In the event that MHSC's Security Department becomes overwhelmed, they 
will contact the Joint Combined Communications Center to request support from local 
law enforcement and state law enforcement agencies.  Local law enforcement or 
Western Wyoming Community College security if available, may be utilized to assist with 
outside traffic control and crowd control as well as external security for the facility. 
Contact information is on resource list. 

B. ACCESS & EGRESS CONTROL 

Due to the limited amount of Security personnel in the facility at any given time, there 
may be a time when the facility is locked down. Secure Operations or a "lock down" refers 
to the locking of all entrance and exit doors to buildings and the posting of personnel at 
these doors to assure that only authorized persons enter or exit. The decision to 
"lockdown" the facility will be made by the Incident Commander in HCC. 

C. TRAFFIC CONTROL 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 20 of 28

32/156



DRAFT

Security Branch Director if assigned,  initiate the organization's Traffic Control Plan to 
manage the movement of personnel, vehicles, and patients both inside and on the 
grounds of the facility if the need arises during an incident. Security personnel will 
support the movement of patients and staff inside the facility. If advisable, the Security 
staff will also assist in the movement of vehicles, both emergency and commercial, on 
the grounds. When appropriate, local law enforcement will assist in the management of 
traffic on the grounds of facility. 

XI. STAFF MANAGEMENT – TJC EM.12.02.03 
A. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

MHSC will provide staff training to ensure that critical staff functions will be performed 
for the rapid, effective implementation of any incident response. 

When the Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) is established, the HICS 
Organization Chart and Job Action Sheets are used to assist Command Staff and 
Section Chiefs to assign staff to HICS positions as situational conditions dictate. 

The Section Chiefs are responsible for assuring that the critical tasks they manage are 
filled by the most appropriate available staff member and to assure that the tasks are 
performed as quickly and effectively as possible. 

If staff is not available for handling critical tasks defined by the Job Actions Sheets, staff 
will be drawn from the appropriate departments or from the Labor pool. Human 
Resources will function as the Personnel Tracking Manager. 

As staff is recalled, they may replace personnel in task assignments for which they are 
better qualified to perform. Staff can only perform activities that they are capable of 
safely performing or for which they are allowed based on certification/license. If 
questions arise concerning assignments, the appropriate Section Chief will determine 
who will perform the task. The tasks are evaluated frequently to ensure the most 
appropriate staff members available are being used, burnout or incident stress problems 
are identified, and staff members in these jobs are rotated as staff levels allow. 

B. MANAGING STAFF SUPPORT ACTIVITIES 

During activations of HICS, various modifications and accommodations are made for 
hospital staff to assist them in coming to the hospital to provide needed services. The 
following accommodations are authorized: 

• When there is a Mass Notification and it is difficult or impossible because of 
weather conditions, the hospital will work with law enforcement that possess 
the appropriate type of vehicles to assist staff and extended family members 
in getting to and from the hospital or alternate care site(s). 

• Where necessary because of conditions, the hospital will accommodate staff 
that need to sleep, eat, and/or other services in order to be at the hospital to 
provide needed services. 

• The Hospital will facilitate incident stress debriefings. Debriefing areas may be 
staffed by available staff from either Southwest Counseling, available clergy, 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 21 of 28

33/156



DRAFT

and others in the community or state(s) trained in incident stress debriefing. 

C. MANAGING STAFF FAMILY SUPPORT ACTIVITIES 

During activations of the EOP, various accommodations may be made for staff family 
members. The accommodations are to ensure that staff is available to provide their 
services to the Hospital and community. Family accommodations will be made available 
in those unusual situations where entire families must come to enable staff to be present 
for emergency services coverage. These will normally be arranged prior to families 
arriving at the hospital. Staff should notify HCC of their need for childcare, elder care or 
animal care before reporting to the Hospital. Staff should exhaust all other resources for 
care. 
 

1. Child Care Center: 

A Child Care Center will be established if deemed necessary and appropriate 
by the Incident Commander. The Childcare area will be set up at the Family, 
Internal & Occupational Medicine Clinic (3000 College Dr.) as determined by 
availability; an alternate care site may be necessary. Staffing for the Child Care 
Center will be assigned from the Labor Pool. The following requirements 
regarding the Child Care Center will be followed: 

• A Childcare tracking form will be filled out upon admittance and 
discharge of child from the daycare 

• An ID band will be attached to each child 

• Food and or snacks may be provided by Nutritional Services, 
depending on length of disaster 

• Parents will need to provide the necessary essentials for their child; 
materials management will assist with additional supplies needed 

• Individuals designated to pick up children from Childcare will enter 
through the main entrance and be escorted to the Child Care Center 

• Parents or designee will sign out the child on the same tracking form 
the child was signed in on 

• Complete Child - Elder Care Registration-Tracking Form 

2. Elder Care: 

• In the event that elder care is needed, the hospital can utilize any 
available space in the Hospital. In the event the Hospital does not 
have space readily available, then an alternate care site can be 
utilized. It would be the responsibility of HCC to assess the needs 
and designate caregivers to the alternate site from the Labor Pool. 

• Complete Child - Elder Care Registration-Tracking Form 

3. Pet Care: 

• If staff or patients arrive with their pets, the Sweetwater County 
Emergency Management Office (SCEMO) (307-922-5370) or 
Sweetwater County Sheriff's Office (SCSO) (after hours at 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 22 of 28

34/156



DRAFT

307-922-5300) will be contacted by HCC. SCEMO) or SCSO will 
contact Sweetwater County Animal Response Team to assist with 
the temporary placement of animals. 

• Complete Small Animal Intake Form 

D. TRAINING AND IDENTIFICATION OF STAFF - TJC EM.15.01.01 
 

1. EM Committee and all leaders will receive the appropriate training in HICS and 
NIMS prior to an incident. This training will also be made available to the staff, 
LIP and authorized volunteers. 

2. Hospital Incident Command System identification vests are issued for the 
appropriate roles in the HICS organization chart. Vests identify the HICS title/
role and are color coded by branch for easy recognition. 

3. All employees will wear their Hospital identification badges at all times during 
the incident. 

4. All EM committee members have continuing education annually on the 
Hospital's learning system as an extensive continuing education training 
program for disaster response and emergency preparedness. Bi-annually the 
EM Coordinator has an instructor provide HICS training to all leadership staff 
that want to attend. Certificate of training is provided. 

XII. MANAGING ESSENTIAL or CRITICAL UTILITIES – 
TJC EM.12.02.11 

A. During an incident, the organization will ensure alternate means for providing essential 
utility systems are available as identified in the EOP. The organization will assess the 
requirements needed to support and maintain essential systems such as fuel, water, 
exterior storm drains and supplies for a period of time identified in the Inventory and 
Sustainability Tool. 

B. This assessment shall include the requirements for 96 hours without community 
support. The alternative means for these sources are located in the Inventory and 
Sustainability Tool. 

C. The alternative utility systems and supplies networks are identified in the Facilities 
Support Policies and are included in the Alternate Utilities, on alternate means of 
essential utility systems. The list of essential utility systems includes: 

• Boilers 

• Air Handlers 

• Elevators 

• Medical gas systems/Vacuum systems 

• Plumbing 

• Normal power supply system 

• Emergency power supply system 

• Natural gas 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 23 of 28

35/156



DRAFT

• Diesel fuel 

• Water supply 

• Maintaining Storm Drainage 

XIII. MANAGING PATIENT CLINICAL AND SUPPORT 
ACTIVITIES – TJC EM.12.02.05 

A. TRIAGE AND CASUALTY LOCATIONS 

Anyone seeking medical care in the Emergency Department during an Incident will be 
triaged. The area by the ambulance entrance doors will be the primary triage location. 
The Emergency Department waiting area can be used for triage if additional space is 
needed. Patients will initially be triaged by a physician or nurse and will be tagged for 
identification. All patients will be sorted as follows: 

The following locations have been identified as the locations for Provision of Care for
casualties and fatalities: 
 

LOCATION DESCRIPTION 

Morgue Deceased victims will go to the basement morgue. 
Additional morgue space may be obtained by contacting the 
local mortuaries 

PACU Area Victims classified as walking wounded will be sent to the 
PACU (Post Anesthesia Care Unit) Area for evaluation 

Ambulance Garage/
Triage Area 

Triage will be conducted at the entrance to the ambulance 
garage. ED waiting area can be used if more space is 
needed. 

Same Day Surgery/
Patient Dying Area 

Patients expected to die (Black tagged) will be sent to an 
assigned room on Same Day Surgery for palliative care 

Nursing Care Units All patients requiring surgery will be held in the appropriate 
nursing care unit until they can be treated in the OR. 

 

CATEGORY DESCRIPTION 

Immediate Care 
Patients (Red Tag) 

Victims survival is dependent upon immediate medical 
intervention 

Delayed Care 
Patients (Yellow 
Tag) 

Victims whose injuries require intervention but whose 
condition allows treatment to be delayed for up to 1 hour 
without further deterioration 

Minor Care 
Patients (Green 
Tag) 

Victims whose injuries can wait an undetermined amount of 
time (greater than 1 hour) without risk of significant 
deterioration 

No Injury Victims who do not require medical attention, but may require 
emotional support 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 24 of 28

36/156



DRAFT

Morgue (Black Tag) Victims who are Deceased on Arrival or who will expire 
regardless of treatment will receive Palliative care. Clergy will 
be assigned 

Classrooms/
Discharge Area 

Inpatients and Outpatients who can be discharged, will be 
escorted to the classrooms or cafeteria in the basement if 
"Shelter in Place" conditions exist, otherwise patients can be 
discharged with the intention of leaving the facility 

B. PATIENT CARE AND DOCUMENTATION 

In the event of a situation, i.e. power loss, that impacts MHSC's electronic medical 
record; all departments will refer to the IT Downtime policy and/or their department 
specific Downtime policy for guidance. 

C. CLINICAL ACTIVITIES 

Depending on the nature of the incident, HCC will make the decisions regarding if and 
when the Hospital will temporarily close to new admissions, transfers, elective surgeries 
and procedures. 

D. EVACUATION ACTIVITIES 

MHSC realizes that a severe or catastrophic incident may force the evacuation of part or 
all of the Hospital. In the event that the Hospital needs to be evacuated the Incident 
Commander will give the evacuation order. 

E. PERSONAL HYGIENE AND SANITATION REQUIREMENTS 

In situations where hygiene may be compromised by lack of water for bathing and 
normal bathroom accommodations, the following guidelines will be followed: 

• The alternative means to personal hygiene can be baby wipes, personal wipes, 
or alcohol-based rubs. 

• Family members may be supplied with cleaning materials and be used to help 
clean the patient during an incident. 

• The alternative means to sanitation, if toilets are inoperable toilets may be 
manually flushed using bottled or reclaimed water. 

• Environmental Services use of water will be curtailed to the extent of one 
change of water per day for mopping except in surgery, delivery rooms, and 
isolation areas or if deemed necessary by the Environmental Services Director. 

• Limit changes of bed linen to those patients who have gross soiling from 
draining wounds, catheters, etc. 

• The Verna Care system will not be used during this time. 

F. MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

Due to limited availability, mental health services during an incident will be limited to the 
availability of staff from Southwest Counseling and/or the availability of Chaplin 
services. 

G. MORTUARY SERVICES 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 25 of 28

37/156



DRAFT

In the event of an incident involving deceased patients, MHSC will contact the County 
Coroner for the appropriate clearance and procedures. If necessary, the "mobile morgue" 
owned by the County should be requested for securing bodies not able to be contained in 
facility's existing morgue. The Coroner's office will be notified when the refrigerated 
trailer is full or the disaster has been cleared. 

H. PATIENT TRACKING: INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL For the departments that will be 
receiving disaster patients such as the Emergency Room and patient care units, the units 
will have patient trackers assigned to track the patients entering and leaving the areas. 
The patient tracking information will be given to the Patient Tracking Manager who will 
track all the patients within the facility during an incident. The form to use for patient 
tracking will be the HICS 254 – Disaster Victim Patient Tracking Form. 

If patients are evacuated, the process will be the same except for the forms. The 
individual patient tracking for evacuation will be the HICS 260 – Patient Evacuation 
Tracking Form. 

When more than two patients are being evacuated, the HICS 255 – Master Patient 
Evacuation Tracking Form will be used as a master list of all those patients who were 
evacuated. 

XIV. DISASTER PRIVILEGES-VOLUNTEER LICENSED 
INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONERS (LIP)/OTHER 
LICENSED VOLUNTEERS – TJC EM.12.02.03 

A. The Hospital grants disaster privileges to volunteer licensed independent practitioners 
(LIP) and other volunteers that are licensed, certified and/or registered in a skilled health 
care position. 

B. Disaster privileges are extended when the Emergency Operations Plan has been 
activated in response to an incident and the Hospital is unable to meet immediate 
patient needs. The Medical Staff policy for granting privileges in the event of a disaster 
has identified the Hospital's process for granting disaster privileges 

XV. SPECIAL NEEDS/VULNERABLE PATIENTS DURING 
EMERGENT TIMES RESPONSE 

A.  Anyone seeking medical care in the Emergency Department during an emergency 
response will be triaged, including those with special needs. 

1. The staff at MHSC will be trained to identify the special clinical needs of the 
population of patients that are considered to be vulnerable during an 
emergency. 

2. Patient registration and medical records may be used to help identify the 
special needs/vulnerable population. 

B. Clinical management decisions regarding the special needs/ vulnerable patients will be 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 26 of 28

38/156



DRAFT
Attachments 

2020 - 96 hour sustainability grid-9.20.pdf 

2022 Hazard Vulnerability Analysis.pdf 

802673 - Small Animal Intake Form.pdf 

802675 - Child - Elder Care Registration-Tracking Form.pdf 

802676 - Decon Response Team.pdf 

802736 - Disaster Readiness Report.pdf 

made on an individual basis and will take into account the medical needs of the patient 
and the current status of the emergency situation. 

1. In the event that the patient is treated at MHSC, clinical procedures provided 
will be documented in the patient’s medical record. 

2. All Hospital departments are responsible for the tracking of the patient, both 
inside and outside the facility. 

3. If the patient needs specialized care not provided by MHSC, special provisions 
will be made and the patient will be transferred to an appropriate specialized 
care center. 

• Pediatric patients- Primary Children’s Hospital, Salt Lake City, UT 

• Denver’s Children’s Hospital, Denver, CO 

• Geriatric and disabled patients- Transferred to specialty hospital 
depending on condition and availability 

• Mental health/ addiction patients- Wyoming Behavioral Institute, 
Casper, WY 

• Wyoming State Hospital, Evanston, WY 

4. Clinical management analysis will be made at the conclusion of the emergency 
response and revisions will be made as necessary in preparation for the next 
emergency. 

Reviewed and Approved: 

Emergency Management Committee: 07/14/2023 

MEC: 01/24/2024 

Board of Trustees: 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 27 of 28

39/156



DRAFT

803088 - Leadership Order Succession form 10.20.pdf 

HICS IV Forms and Instru#24.docx 

Hospital Resource Directory- HICS 258 Directory 2019.pdf 

Medical Staff Policy for Granting Privileges in the event of a Disaster 

Small-Rural Hospital Job Action Sheets.doc 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Irene Richardson: CEO 12/2022 

Tami Love: CFO 12/2022 

Kari Quickenden: Chief Clinical 
Officer 

12/2022 

Ann Clevenger: CNO 11/2022 

Suzan Campbell: General Legal 
Counsel 

11/2022 

Emergency Management David Beltran: Security Director/
Emergency Management 

11/2022 

Reg. Standards 

TJC EM 12.01.01, TJC EM.09.01.01, TJC EM.10.01.01, TJC EM.11.01.01, TJC EM.12.02.01, TJC EM.12.02.03, 
TJC EM.12.02.05, TJC EM.12.02.07, TJC EM.12.02.09, TJC EM.12.09.11, TJC EM.13.01.01, TJC EM.14.01.01, 
TJC EM.15.01.01, TJC EM.16.01.01, TJC EM.17.01.01 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). Retrieved 03/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/
13755626/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 28 of 28

40/156



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:3/4/2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
HR Committee – New Employee Policy 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☐ Revision 
 ☒ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
The Human Resources Committee held a special meeting on 02/26/2024 to 
discuss the above mentioned (and attached) policy. In House Counsel, along with 
Board counsel, Geoff Phillips have worked on this policy and presented it to the 
Committee members for review. The Committee agreed unanimously that the 
policy is accurate and recommends a do pass to the Board once they have had a 
chance to review. It is well written and is imperative to have active . 

 

 Board Committee Action: 

Please review as a first read at the March 2024 Board Meeting.  
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☒ For Review Only 
 ☐ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☒ In House Comments:Suzan Campbell has been sent the policy 
 ☒ Board  Comments:Geoff Phillips drafted the policy 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Leadership recommends that this policy pass as to better serve our employees 
and the interests of the hospital.  

41/156



CONSENSUAL RELATIONSHIP POLICY 

PURPOSE: The objective of this policy is to minimize the risk of conflicts of interest, 
promote fairness, and reduce instances of real or perceived sexual harassment in the 
workplace. 

SCOPE:  This policy applies to employees, physicians, contractors, or other individuals 
working at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (the “Hospital”). 

POLICY: 

I. Definitions.  

“Consensual Romantic, Dating or Sexual Relationship:” For purposes of this policy, 
consensual romantic relationships exist when individuals mutually and consensually 
understand a relationship to be romantic, intimate and/or sexual in nature, whether casual or 
serious, short-term or long-term, past or present.  “Consensual Romantic, Dating or Sexual 
Relationships” may include incidents or occurrences in the form of electronic, physical or 
verbal conduct.  Non-consensual sexual or romantic conduct is always prohibited by Hospital 
policy and may be in violation of applicable law. 

“Employee(s)” means all at-will employee(s) and non-at-will employee(s) as defined in 
Hospital Employee Policy – Termination, Suspension without Pay and Appeal; and, all 
employees, including nurses, doctors, other medical staff and any other employees who have 
entered into a contract of employment with the Hospital. 

“Contractor[s],” or “Independent Contractor[s]” mean any and all contractors; subcontractors; 
employees of contractors and subcontractors; and, any other independent contractors and their 
employees that are contracted by or on behalf of the Hospital to provide any work, materials, 
labor or services to the Hospital. 

II. No romantic or sexual relationships between those persons in inherently unequal 
positions. 

Consensual romantic or dating relationships that might be appropriate in other circumstances 
are prohibited when they occur between (1) persons in inherently unequal positions where one 
party has real or perceived authority, influence, or power over the other’s conditions of 
employment or has the ability to directly impact the other’s career progression, which includes 
formal and informal supervisory relationships.  This includes, but is not limited to, a person in 
a management or supervisory position with an employee, physician, contractor, or other 
individual whom he or she directly supervises or whose terms or conditions of employment or 
contract he or she may influence (examples of terms or conditions of employment or contract 
include promotion, termination, discipline and compensation), or (2) an employee of the 

42/156



Hospital and another employee over whom the employee has or potentially will have 
supervisory, advisory, evaluative, or other authority or influence.   

There are no prohibitions or reporting requirements for consensual social interactions between 
employees and/or contractors, regardless of supervisory relationships, that are not romantic in 
nature.   

Even where negative consequences to the participants do not result, such relationships create 
an environment charged with potential or perceived conflicts of interest and possible use of 
supervisory leverage to maintain or promote the relationship.  Romantic or sexual relationships 
that the parties may view as consensual may still raise questions of favoritism, as well as of an 
exploitative abuse of trust and power. 

Romantic or dating relationships between Hospital employees, physicians, nurses, medical 
staff, and/or contractors are permitted, subject to the requirements of this policy. 

III.  Reporting Requirements. 

Individuals involved in a relationship at the Hospital who are subject to this policy must 
immediately disclose the relationship to Human Resources.  All employees and contractors 
are required to report violations of this policy to Human Resources. 

Individuals involved in a relationship at the Hospital who are subject to this policy may be 
asked to sign a document acknowledging that the relationship is free from coercion and 
harassment. 

A supervisor or manager who has had a previous romantic or dating relationship with an 
employee, physician, contractor, or other individual whom he or she directly supervises or 
whose terms or conditions of employment or contract he or she may influence must disclose 
the previous relationship to Human Resources and will not be involved in decisions relating 
to that individual's promotions, raises, termination or other terms and conditions of 
employment.  With respect to those involved in a previous relationship as described in this 
paragraph, Hospital management, in its sole discretion, may (1) remove or transfer one or all 
of the individuals involved, or (2) Remove the supervisor or individual in the position of 
authority or perceived authority from all official matters affecting, or appearing to affect, the 
subordinate. 

If a prohibited consensual romantic relationship is reported to Human Resources involving a 
contractor, Human Resources shall immediately contact the involved individual’s supervisor 
and coordinate the enforcement of this policy with the contractor’s supervisor. 

 

43/156



Retaliation for making a report or participating in a process under this policy is prohibited. 
The Hospital prohibits an individual from knowingly filing a false complaint or making 
misrepresentations of a violation of this policy.  A complaint made in good faith is not 
considered false merely because the evidence does not ultimately support the allegation of a 
violation of this policy.  If an investigation results in a finding that a person who has accused 
another of violating this policy has acted maliciously or has recklessly made false accusations, 
the reporting party will be subject to appropriate Corrective Action in accordance with 
Hospital policy.  It is important to note that due process considerations may limit the ability to 
investigate or resolve anonymous complaints.  

IV.  Professionalism. 

Physicians, nurses, medical staff, contractors and Employees are expected to conduct 
themselves in a professional manner at all times. Workplace dating, romantic or sexual 
relationships must not interfere with any contractor’s or employee's professionalism, including 
treating others with respect and refraining from behavior that may make others feel 
uncomfortable (for example, overt physical displays of affection and using sexual language). 
Sexual relations or sexual contact of any kind or with anyone is strictly prohibited in Hospital 
facilities. 

Management personnel are expected to set a high standard of professional conduct both at 
work and in any social setting at events sponsored by the Hospital. For this reason, 
management personnel are prohibited from social interaction with subordinates that is or might 
be perceived as inappropriate (for example, unwanted flirting, touching or other behavior that 
may be regarded as sexual harassment). 

V. Discretion and Non-discrimination, 

The organization retains discretion in its enforcement of this policy. Decisions made under this 
policy will be made based on operational and business reasons and without regard to sex, race, 
color, religion, creed, age (40 and over), national origin, citizenship, physical or mental 
disability, military service or application, sexual orientation, gender identity or any other 
protected characteristic under federal, state or local laws. 

VI. Consequences. 

Although one or more corrective action measures may be taken in connection with a violation 
of this policy, no formal order will be followed. Corrective action may include any of a variety 
of actions depending on the circumstances and severity of the violation. A violation of this 
policy may result in one or more of the following consequences at the discretion of Hospital 
management:   

44/156



A. The removal or transfer of one or all of the individuals in violation of the policy to 
sever the supervisory relationship.  

B. The removal of the supervisor or individual in the position of authority or perceived 
authority from all official matters affecting, or appearing to affect, the subordinate.   

C. An administrative inquiry into the matter to determine if any inappropriate action(s) 
occurred as a result of the relationship, which could result in administrative action, 
including corrective action in accordance with the Hospital Corrective Action 
Policy up to and including termination from employment.  Such findings may also 
be considered when making administrative decisions to include funding, staff, and 
resources.   

RELATED POLICIES: 

NON-DISCRIMINATION AND ANTIHARASSMENT 

45/156



   

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:  March 4th, 2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items:  2024-2027 Strategic Plan 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ______ Revision 
 ___X__ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments:  This is our 2024-2027 Strategic Plan.  We 
have been working on this since November, with input from the Board of 
Trustees, Senior Leadership, Medical Staff and Directors.  This is a comprehensive 
plan that includes objectives, initiatives, and strategies for the next three years. 
 
 
Board Committee Action:  The Strategic Plan has been presented to the 
Governance Committee and has been brought forward to the full Board of 
Trustees for first review.  
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ____X__ For Review Only 
 _______ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ___N/A_ In House Comments: 
 ___N/A_ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation:  The CEO worked closely with Senior 
Leadership to create this plan and it is my recommendation that the Board of 
Trustees consider this plan for first review.   

46/156



M E M O R I A L 

H O S P I TA L O F  

S W E E T WAT E R

C O U N T Y

2 0 2 4  – 2 0 2 7  

S T R AT E G I C  P L A N

47/156



MESSAGE FROM THE C EO







48/156



TABL E  OF  

C ON TEN T S







49/156



I N TR OD U C TI O N

50/156



OU R  M I SS I ON  

51/156



O U R  V I S I O N  

52/156



OU R  VAL U ES

53/156



OU R  STR ATEGI C  PR I OR I T I ES

54/156



PAT I EN T EXPER I EN C E

55/156



QU AL I TY AN D  SAFETY

56/156



C O M M U N I T Y,  S E RV I C E S  A N D  G R O W T H

57/156



EM PL OYEE EXPER I EN C E 

58/156



F I N A N C I A L S T E WA R D S H I P

59/156



OU R  VAL U ES

60/156



BE K I N D

61/156



BE R ESPEC T F U L

62/156



BE AC C OU N TAB L E

63/156



W O R K  C O L L A B O R AT I V E LY 

64/156



EM BR AC E EXC EL L E N C E 

65/156



S T R AT E G I C  G O A L S  A N D  I N I T I AT I V E S

66/156







PAT I ENT EXPERI EN CE 

67/156







PAT I ENT EXPERI EN CE 

68/156













PAT I ENT EXPERI EN CE 

69/156









PAT I ENT EXPERI EN CE 

70/156







QUAL I TY AND SAFETY 

71/156







QUAL I TY AND SAFETY 

72/156

















QUAL I TY AND SAFETY

73/156







COMMU NI T Y,  SERVI CES AND GROW TH 

74/156















COMMU NI T Y,  SERVI CES AND GROW TH 

75/156







COMMU NI T Y,  SERVI CES AND GROW TH 

76/156











COMMU NI T Y,  SERVI CES AND GROW TH

77/156







EMPL OYEE EXPERI EN CE 

78/156











EMPL OYEE EXPERI EN CE

79/156











EMPL OYEE EXPERI EN CE

80/156







F I NANCI A L STEWARD S HI P

81/156















F I NANCI A L STEWARD S HI P

82/156









F I NANCI A L STEWARD S HI P

83/156









F I NANCI A L STEWARD S HI P

84/156









F I NANCI A L STEWARD S HI P

85/156











F I NANCI A L STEWARD S HI P

86/156



TH E WAY TO GET STARTED  I S  TO  

QU I T TAL K I N G AN D  BEGI N  D OI N G.

Walt Disney

87/156



SU M M ARY

88/156



TH AN K YOU

89/156



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:3/4/2024  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
Medical Staff Bylaws 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
The bylaws committee/MEC have worked to make many changes to the bylaws.  
They have consulted bylaws attorney, Nick Healey.  The changes were approved 
by MEC on 1/24/24 and by the General Medical Staff on 2/21/24.  I am sending 
the red-line copy that shows all of the changes.  If you would prefer a final draft, I 
can send that, as well.  

 

 Board Committee Action: 

Click or tap here to enter text. 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☒ For Review Only 

 ☐ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☐ In House Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 

 ☐ Board  Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Recommend Approval. 

90/156



91/156



92/156



93/156



94/156



95/156



96/156



97/156



98/156



99/156



100/156



101/156



102/156



103/156



104/156



105/156



106/156



107/156



108/156



109/156



110/156



111/156



112/156



113/156



114/156



115/156



116/156



117/156



118/156



119/156



120/156



121/156



122/156



123/156



124/156



125/156



126/156



127/156



128/156



129/156



130/156



131/156



132/156



133/156



134/156



135/156



136/156



137/156



138/156



139/156



140/156



141/156



142/156



143/156



144/156



145/156



146/156



147/156



148/156



149/156



150/156



151/156



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…February Buildings and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  23 February, 2023 
 
Oncology Suite Renovation…Phase I has started. Work should be done with this Phase about 
the middle of March. The Department of Health and the Department of Pharmacy will need to 
inspect…then on to Phase II. 
 
Medical Imaging Core and X-Ray…MHSC staff is reviewing the drawings. Siemens engineers and 
the electrical contractor are meeting soon to finalize the plans for the ER X-Ray room. This is 
the first Phase and it is anticipated it should be done about May 1st. Then, the other two X-Ray 
rooms will be started. 
 
Laboratory Expansion Project…meetings have been held between Plan One Architects and 
Groathouse, the CMAR contractor. It is anticipated that groundbreaking should occur by early 
June. Irene mentioned that there might be additional ARPA funds available according to the 
Wyoming Hospital Association. 
 
Master Plan…the master planning consultant has been meeting with MHSC staff. Staff seems to 
be happy with the consultant’s work. There are, not surprisingly, considerable opinions among 
staff members as to how to best use space that will be re-purposed and how existing space can 
be improved. Staff will present to the B & G Committee a summary of the master planning work 
once ready. I asked for a Board workshop on this topic when the time is right. 
 
U of U Suite Renovation…this project is tabled for now. 
 
Taylor Jones updated the Committee on funding status. Because it is projected by CREG that 
assessed valuation will be down for FY 2025, the message is…”hold the line” on spending. 
Additional discussion ensured about possibly reserving some of the FY 2024 county 
maintenance funds to be carried over to ultimately provide, within 2-3 years, about a 
$2,000,000 nest egg for future projects. 
 
NOTE: After the meeting concluded, Tami reported that the Board should receive the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) proposal from Groathouse in late March so that the Board 
can approve same at its April meeting. 
 
For more information, please refer to the minutes of the meeting in the packet. 
 
 

152/156



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

February 20, 2024 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on February 20, 2024, 

at 2:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

   Mr. Craig Rood – Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

   Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

   Mr. James Horan, Director of Facilities 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Maintenance Supervisor/ Project Manager 

Ms. Michele Schmidt, PlanOne Architects 

Mr. Taylor Jones, County Commissioner   

 

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order and asked for a mission moment to be shared. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Mr. Rood made a motion to approve the 

agenda. Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed.  

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the January 16, 2024 meeting. Mr. 

Horan made a motion to approve the minutes. Mr. Rood seconded; motion passed.  

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston said 228 work orders were completed in January.  This report doesn’t show the whole 

story as some work orders roll over from the previous month depending on the scheduling of tasks.  

The percentage completed is on track.  Mr. Kelsey asked what the toughest work orders are related 

to.  Mr. Johnston the ones dealing with cooling and heating are the most difficult as it is hard to 

keep everyone comfortable. 

 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Oncology Suite renovation 

 

Mr. Johnston gave an update on Phase 1 of the project.  The area has been framed out, plumbing 

completed and the electrical has passed inspection.  They will start double sheet rocking next 

week.  It will be double since it is the new ante room.  The contractor estimates Phase 1 to be 

completed in about 3 weeks.  The Department of Health and the Department of Pharmacy will 

need to inspect.  They will then start on Phase II.  

  

Medical Imaging Core and X-ray 

 

Ms. Schmidt believes this project is waiting on hospital staff to respond to drawing review.  Mr. 

Johnston said Siemens engineers and our electrical contractor are meeting this week to finalize 

the plan for the ER x-ray room.  He estimated we are still 6-8 weeks out to complete the ER 

room. Once this project gets closer to completion, we will focus on the other two x-ray rooms. 

153/156



 

 

Minutes of the February 20, 2024, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

SLIB Laboratory Expansion project 

 

Ms. Schmidt said there has been preliminary meetings with Groathouse, the general contractor, 

working through questions on final drawings and scheduling.  There were modifications needed 

to add a second egress from the second floor.  Breaking ground is now expected at the end of May 

or beginning of June.  Mr. Kelsey asked when we can anticipate the GMP as it needs to have Board 

approval before moving forward.  Mr. Johnston said he would let Groathouse know of our Board 

schedule and ask if it can be ready for the March 4 meeting.  Mr. Kelsey asked if it was close to 

the original architectural bid.  Ms. Shmidt said the GMP did come in close to the original budget 

but now needs to be updated with the secondary exit from the second floor.  Ms. Richardson said 

the Wyoming Hospital Association let her know there may be additional ARPA funds available 

for projects coming in over budget or different projects.  As soon as we get a GMP we can look at 

applying for more funds if needed.  Mr. Kelsey said we will plan on taking the GMP to the Board 

for approval at the March meeting or we can have a special Board meeting if needed so we don’t 

hold up the project.  He would like to see the comparison to the architectural estimate and the 

details for any variance and then an ongoing tracking of costs to keep any overages minimal. 

 

Master Plan 

 

Ms. Richardson we just received the notes back from the PACT group regarding their onsite tours 

and interviews with staff.  We are meeting on Friday to review.  We are also meeting later this 

week to look at the prioritized project list and compare it to the results of the master plan notes.  

Mr. Kelsey asked for a summary of the Master Plan after the reviews are complete.  He asked if 

were happy with the consultant. Ms. Richardson said there were 3 onsite and they were very 

detailed, responsive, and timely.  She said we are dealing with 45+ year old buildings and it will 

need some infrastructure done.  Mr. Kelsey said he had been through the master planning process 

several times and asked about the difference of opinions on how to use space.  Ms. Richardson 

said everyone wants something done with their space.  There was a lot of discussion about the 

different ideas that were brought up during the onsite visits.  Mr. Kelsey said as we get further into 

the Master Plan, he would like to see this presented as a Board workshop.  

 

U of U suite renovation 

 

Ms. Love said this project remains tabled. 

 

 

 

New Business 

 

Mr. Jones gave an update on the budget discussion from the Commissioner meeting earlier in the 

day.  He said the assessed value is estimated to be down about 10% and expects the budget 

requests to follow suit.  There was discussion regarding the new county depreciation fund for 

capital projects.  We will ask that any funds left from our maintenance fund for FY2024 be 

carried over to open this fund.  For FY2025 budget, we will request a split between routine funds 

for normal reimbursement and capital funds to be kept in the new fund for future projects. 

 

 

154/156



 

 

Minutes of the February 20, 2024, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

Other 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, March 19, 2024; 2:30P – 3:30P.  This may be 

rescheduled based on information from the Master Plan review and what we are ready to present 

to the committee.  

 

Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 3:14 pm. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

155/156



 

        Minutes  

Governance Committee 
February 19, 2024 

 

Present: Irene Richardson, Marty Kelsey, and Barbara Sowada 

Zoom meeting called to order at 2:00 pm  

Minutes had been previously approved 

Agenda created during meeting 

 

Meeting called to order at 2:00 pm by Barbara Sowada; all members present. 

 

Old Business 

 None 

 

New Business 

1. Suggestions from the Rural AHA Conference for best practices for boards were discussed. Action: review 

and modify the templates from The Governance Institute for BOT chair and BOT chair evaluation. 

Members will discuss modified templates at March Governance meeting to determine whether either 

are worthy are worthy of being adopted by the Board. 

2. Suggestion from the Rural AHA Conference regarding a bylaw change to include non-board members in 

select Board Committees was discussed. Action: Marty will take this discussion to Bylaw Ad Hoc 

Committee for further review. 

3. Suggestion from the Rural AHA Conference regarding an annual Board calendar of work. Action: Barbara 

will draft calendar for review at March Governance meeting. 

4. Irene gave status update of strategic plan. Action: Strategic plan will be presented to Board at March 

meeting. Recommended that status updates are provided quarterly. 

5. Date changes for future Board meetings were discussed and will be brought to March Board for 

approval. Dates changes are: 1) Board Finance workshop February 28th as part of F&A meeting; 2) Move 

June BOT meeting to May 29th, ,   May F&A meeting moved to May 28th; and 3) since regular July BOT 

meeting is July 3 should it be changed? 

Meeting adjourned at 3:00 pm. 

Next meeting is tentatively scheduled for March 18th at 2:00 pm.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

156/156


	Agenda - March 4, 2024 Mtg
	Mission and Vision
	Minutes for February 7 2024 Draft
	Minutes for February 28 2024 Special Finance Workshop Draft
	EOP orientation memo 2024 Second reading March 2024
	Emergency Operations Plan -EOP-Draft March Board
	Employee Policy – Consensual Relationships
	Board Orientation Memo - Strategic Plan
	Strategic Plan - Board of Trustees Presentation
	Medical Staff Bylaws
	I.S. Report
	Finance &amp; Audit Committee Meeting Information
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report...February 2023 Marty Kelsey
	Building & Grounds Minutes February 20 2024 Tami Love
	Governance Committee

